
 
 

ANNUAL  
MEETING OF THE  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

May 15, 2017 at 8:30 a.m. 
 

King County Housing Authority 
Snoqualmie Conference Room 

700 Andover Park W 
Tukwila, WA 98188 

 

A G E N D A 

I. Call to Order  

II. Roll Call  

III. Election of Officers 
 
A. Chairperson 
B. Vice-Chair 
 

IV. Public Comment 

 

V. Approval of Minutes  
 

A. Board Meeting Minutes –April 17, 2017 

 

  1 

VI. Approval of Agenda  

VII. Consent Agenda  

A. Voucher Certification Reports for March 2017

B. Revised Resolution No. 5539: Approval to revise Resolution; 
Authorization of the Disposition of Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels by 
negotiated sale to Conner Homes, or a subsidiary or related entity of 
Conner Homes 
 

  2    
 
  3 

VIII. Resolutions for Discussion & Possible Action 
 

A. Resolution No. 5563: Authorizing the extension of maturity and 
modification of the terms of various notes; authorizing the Authority to 

      
 
  4 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ Agenda 
May 15, 2017 Annual Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

obtain an extension of the stated expiration date of the letter of credit 
supporting payment of the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, 2000 (Overlake TOD Project) and Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, 2000, Series B; authorizing the execution of related 
documents; and determining related matters 
 

C. Resolution No. 5564: Authorizing the amendment of Resolution No. 
5542; relating to the Credit Enhanced Financing for Highland Village 
Apartments 
 

D. Resolution No. 5565: Authorizing the amendment Resolution No. 
5544, relating to Credit Enhance Financing for Abbey Ridge Apartments 

 
IX. Briefings & Reports  

 
A. First Quarter 2017 Executive Dashboard 6  

B. New Bank Accounts 7  

C. Housing Choice Voucher Waitlist Opening Update 8  

D. Energy Performance Contract Update 9 

E. FFY 2017 Budget Impact: Housing Choice Voucher &  

Public Housing Programs 10  

X. Executive Director Report       

XI. KCHA in the News 11     

XII. Commissioner Comments  

A. Washington DC Legislative Trip Debrief 

XIII. Adjournment 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or 
assistance at the meeting are requested to notify the Board Coordinator, Jessica 
Olives, in writing at 600 Andover Park West, Seattle, WA 98188 or by calling 
206-574-1194 prior to the meeting date. 
 

Note there will be a Moving King County Residents Forward 
(MKCRF) meeting immediately following the KCHA Meeting. 

5



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
1 



 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
Monday, April 17, 2017 

 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the King County Housing 
Authority was held on Monday, April 17, 2017 at the King County Housing 
Authority, 700 Andover Park West, Tukwila, WA 98188. There being a quorum, 
the meeting was called to order by Chair Doug Barnes at 8:30 a.m.  

 
II. ROLL CALL  
 
 Present: Commissioner Doug Barnes (Chair), Commissioner Michael Brown 

(Vice-Chair) [arrived 8:33 a.m], Commissioner Susan Palmer, 
Commissioner TerryLynn Stewart, and Commissioner John Welch 

 
 Excused: None 
  
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 

 
IV.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Palmer, the 
Board unanimously approved the minutes from the Board of Commissioners’ 
meeting of March 20, 2017. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Chair Barnes asked that Resolution No. 5562 under VI. Consent Agenda be placed 
under VII. Resolutions for Discussion and Possible Action, for the Boards’ 
consideration. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Palmer and seconded by Commissioner Stewart, the 
Board unanimously approved the April 17, 2017 Board of Commissioners’ meeting 
agenda. 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Voucher Certification Reports for February 2017 
 

February 2017 
GENERAL PROPERTIES 

    Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 
 

3,036,300.41 

 
Subtotal 3,036,300.41 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
April 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 
 

    Accounts Payable Vouchers 
               Key Bank Checks #307878-#308441 
 

5,010,495.57 
Tenant Accounting Checks #10327- #10338  1,556.55 
Commerce Bank Direct Payment  91,017.75 

 
Subtotal 5,103,069.87 

    Payroll Vouchers 
              Checks - #90389 – #90411   23,436.73 

            Direct Deposit   1,336,203.47 

 
Subtotal 1,359,640.20 

    Section 8 Program Vouchers 
            Checks - #616666-#616984 
 

190,188.40 
          Refund Checks  17,084.72 
          ACH  - #373904-#376680 

 
11,024,595.73 

 
Subtotal 11,231,868.85 

       Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal 
 

193,468.13 

 
Subtotal 193,468.13 

   

 

GRAND 
TOTAL 20,951,347.46 

 
 

BOND PROPERTIES 
Bond Properties Total (31 different properties) $2,053,409.11 
 

 
On motion by Commissioner Brown and seconded by Commissioner Palmer, the 
Board unanimously approved the consent agenda.  

 
VII. RESOLUTIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
A. Resolution No. 5562: Authorization of an Interlocal Agreement with Region 

VIII Education Service Center (Pittsburg, Texas) for the purpose of 
participating in the Interlocal Purchasing System 
 
Craig Violante, Director of Finance, presented Resolution No. 5562 and 
provided background information. Mr. Violante also mentioned that this 
action is in compliance with the authority to enter into an intergovernmental 
or interlocal cooperative purchasing agreements as authorized by RCW 
39.34.030.   
 
On motion by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Palmer, 
the Board unanimously approved Resolution No. 5562.  

 
VIII.  BRIEFINGS & REPORTS 

A. Fourth Quarter 2016 Financial Statements 
Mr. Violante briefed the Board on the Financial Statements for the Fourth 
Quarter in Calendar Year 2016. 

 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
April 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 
 

B. First Quarter 2017 Procurement Report 
Staff reported on the procurement activities for the period of January through 
March 2017. The report represents the activity involved in the award of 
contracts over the amount of $100,000 and change orders that cumulatively 
exceed 10% of the original contract amount.   
 

C. Bank Accounts 
Craig Violante reported that KCHA opened one new bank account for 
Spiritwood Manor LLLP. 

 
D. First Quarter 2017 Summary Write-Offs 

Mr. Violante also presented the Write-Offs for the First Quarter of 2017. 
 

E. 2016 Resident Characteristics Report 
A report on KCHA’s Resident Characteristics was provided by Alexis Warth, 
Senior Management Analyst, and included a summary of the 2016 analyses of 
KCHA households.  

IX. STUDY SESSION 
 

A. Legislative Update 
Megan Hyla, Director of Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs provided a 
presentation in preparation for an upcoming Legislative Trip to Washington 
DC. Ms. Hyla provided information on the King County delegation, the 
congressional process, the FFY 2017 Appropriations  and proposed 2018 HUD 
budget.  
  

X.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
  

Executive Director Stephen Norman provided an update on the Issaquah 
Development projects. 

 
XI.  KCHA IN THE NEWS 
  
 None. 

 
XII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
  
 None. 

  
XIII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

On motion by Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner Stewart, the 
Board adjourned the meeting at 10:32 a.m.  

 

 



KCHA Board of Commissioners’ 
April 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair  

Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 

________________________  
    STEPHEN J. NORMAN 
    Secretary 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
2 









T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
3 



 
 
T0:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: John E. Eliason, Development Director  
 
Date: May 9, 2017 
 
Re:  Revised Resolution No. 5539: Approval to revise Resolution; 

Authorizing the Disposition of Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels to 
Conner Homes, or a Subsidiary or Related Entity of Conner Homes  

 
Executive Summary 
At HUD’s direction, the Board is requested to revise Resolution No.  5539 to 
explicitly allow the Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels property to be sold to Conner 
Homes, or to CHG SF, LLC or any other subsidiary or related entity of Conner 
Homes.  
 
Background 
The original resolution only contemplated the sale to Conner Homes and not a 
subsidiary or related affiliate. This revision also confirms the purchase price of 
$3,787,500. The purchase price is fully supported by the market rate appraisal of the 
Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels and is within 2% of the original estimate. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Approval to revised Resolution No. 5539 is recommended. 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

***REVISED*** 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5539 
(Adopted June 20, 2016) 
(Revised May 15, 2017) 

 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF GREENBRIDGE WEST BULK 

PARCELS BY NEGOTIATED SALE TO CONNER HOMES, OR A SUBSIDIARY 
OR RELATED ENTITY OF CONNER HOMES 

 
 WHEREAS, one objective of the King County Housing Authority’s Greenbridge 

HOPE VI project in White Center is the provision of up to 400 new home ownership 

opportunities in the community; and, 

WHEREAS, KCHA has platted, and has provided utility service to the property 

boundaries of the Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels comprised of Tract A-401, Parcels Z-401 

and Z-402 within Greenbridge Division 4 and Parcels Z-1 and Z-3 within Greenbridge Master 

Plat; and, 

WHEREAS, KCHA has offered this land for bulk sale through an open public 

offering to developers and builders of for-sale housing; and, 

 WHEREAS, Conner Homes has made an offer to purchase the Greenbridge 

West Bulk Parcels pursuant to the open public offering for a sales price of $3,850,000; 

and, 

 WHEREAS, Conner Homes, acting through its subsidiary and related entity 

known as CHG SF, LLC thereafter entered into a purchase and sales agreement with 

KCHA to purchase the Greenbridge West Bulk Parcel for $3,850,000; and, 

WHEREAS, Conner Homes has a successful record of developing land and 

building new homes in communities in the Puget Sound region for over 60 years; and, 

 WHEREAS, KCHA has entered into a nonbinding Letter of Intent with Conner 

Homes, dated May 11, 2016, setting forth the major terms of the sale; and,  



Revised - Resolution No. 5539 Greenbridge Bulk Parcel Sale to Conner Homes 
May 15, 2017 KCHA Board  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 WHEREAS, during the feasibility contingency period an unforeseen condition 

arose regarding changes needed to a certain storm water control structure, necessitating 

adjustments to the sales price; and,  

 WHEREAS, the final negotiated price of $3,787,500, which is 1.6 percent below 

the initial agreement amount and is fully supported by the market rate appraisal of the 

Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels; and,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING, THAT: 

1. Executive Director, or his designee, is hereby authorized to execute a purchase 

and sale agreement with Conner Homes or CHG SF, LLC or any other 

subsidiary or related entity of Conner Homes, pursuant to the terms of the 

Agreement, its amendments and this Resolution, to sell and dispose of 

Greenbridge West Bulk Parcels for the price of $3,850,000 $3,787,500. HUD 

restricted proceeds from this sale will be used to offset land development and 

carrying costs associated with the “for sale” land parcels at Greenbridge and 

other uses as may be approved by HUD.  The Executive Director, or his 

designee, is authorized to adjust the price by up to 15 percent to account for 

unknown or unforeseen conditions so long as the final sales price is supported 

by a market rate appraisal. 

2.  The Executive Director, or his designee, is authorized, in his discretion to 

negotiate the specific provisions of the Purchase and Sale Agreement, based 

on the general terms and conditions set forth in the Letter of Intent 

referenced above, provided that the Executive Director, or his designee, shall 
 

 



Revised - Resolution No. 5539 Greenbridge Bulk Parcel Sale to Conner Homes 
May 15, 2017 KCHA Board  
Page 3 of 3 
 

not authorize changes to the Purchase and Sale Agreement that would 

materially interfere with KCHA’s objective for homeownership as set forth in 

the HOPE VI Revitalization Plan or its amendments.  

 ADOPTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING THIS 15TH DAY OF MAY, 2017. 

 
     THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

      COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 
 

  _________________________ 
       DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 

       Board of Commissioners 
 
 

 
 
   
STEPHEN J. NORMAN 
Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
4 



 

 

 
 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Tim Walter, Senior Director of Development & Asset Management 

            
DATE: May 9, 2017 
 
RE: Resolution No. 5563: Authorizing extensions and modifications of 

various note issues; and extension of letter of credit supporting the 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000 and 2000 Series B 
(Overlake TOD Project)  

 
Executive Summary 
Resolution No. 5563 authorizes the Executive Director to extend the maturity 
dates and negotiate certain terms of KCHA’s existing lines of credit and the 
Overlake Letter of Credit. 
 
Resolution No. 5287, as amended by Resolution No. 5301 (both adopted in 2010), 
provided omnibus authority to extend the maturities and reset the interest rates 
and fees on several credit facilities related to KCHA's various lines of credit. The 
outside maturity date was December 31, 2018.   
 
Background 
In order to renew existing lines of credit with a maturity beyond this date, it is 
now necessary to adopt a new resolution extending this date. Resolution No. 5563 
authorizes the extension of the maturity date to December 31, 2023 and provides 
for the Executive Director to negotiate changes to the interest rates and fees, if 
any. 

 
The resolution further authorizes the extension and/or renewal of the Overlake 
Letter of Credit through the final maturity date of the bonds which is 2040.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
Approval of Resolution No. 5563 is recommended. 

 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 

RESOLUTION NO. 5563 

  A RESOLUTION of the Housing Authority of the County of King 
authorizing the extension of maturity and modification of the terms of various 
note issues; authorizing the Authority to obtain an extension of the stated 
expiration date of the letter of credit supporting payment of the Authority’s 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000 (Overlake TOD Project) and 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000, Series B (Overlake TOD Project); 
authorizing the execution of related documents; and determining related matters. 

ADOPTED May 15, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document was prepared by: 
 

FOSTER PEPPER PLLC 
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 3000 

Seattle, Washington 98101 
(206) 447-4400 

51605035.1 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 

RESOLUTION NO. 5563 

  A RESOLUTION of the Housing Authority of the County of King 
authorizing the extension of maturity and modification of the terms of various 
note issues; authorizing the Authority to obtain an extension of the stated 
expiration date of the letter of credit supporting payment of the Authority’s 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000 (Overlake TOD Project) and 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000, Series B (Overlake TOD Project); 
authorizing the execution of related documents; and determining related matters. 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has issued the following notes (collectively referred to herein 

as the “Note Issues”), which are currently scheduled to mature on the dates set forth below: 

 
Authorizing 

Resolution(s) and 
Date(s) of Adoption 

 
 
 

Name of Note Issue(s) 

 
 

Scheduled  
Maturity Date 

Resolution No. 5344 adopted 
September 21, 2011 

Not to Exceed $11,500,000 Revolving 
Line of Credit Revenue Note, 2011 (Tax-
Exempt) and Revolving Line of Credit 
Revenue Note, 2011 (Taxable) 

May 18, 2017 

Resolution No. 5431 adopted 
June 17, 2013 

Not to Exceed $1,559,623 Revolving Line 
of Credit Revenue Note, 2013 (Cascadian 
and Housing Portfolio Project) 

June 25, 2018 

Resolution No. 5504 adopted 
April 20, 2015, as amended 
by Resolution No. 5546 
adopted August 18, 2016 

Not to Exceed $80,000,000 Revolving 
Line of Credit Revenue Note, 2015 
(Taxable) and Revolving Line of Credit 
Revenue Note, 2015 (Tax-Exempt) 

June 30, 2018 

 

WHEREAS, the registered owners of the Note Issues have offered, or are expected to 

offer, to permit the extension of respective maturity dates of the Note Issues; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 3076 adopted June 13, 2000, and Resolution 

No. 3127 adopted June 14, 2001, the Authority issued its $21,525,000 original aggregate principal 

amount Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000 (Overlake TOD Project) and $6,475,000 

51605035.1 

 



original aggregate principal amount Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2000, Series B 

(Overlake TOD Project) (together, the “Overlake Bonds”); and  

 WHEREAS, payment of the debt service on the Overlake Bonds is supported by a letter of 

credit (the “Overlake Letter of Credit”) issued by Bank of America, N.A., which is currently 

scheduled to expire on July 1, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Overlake Letter of Credit be extended from time to time 

so that the Overlake Bonds may remain outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that Bank of America, N.A. will offer to extend the term of 

the Overlake Letter of Credit; and  

 WHEREAS, RCW 35.82.040 provides that a housing authority may delegate to one or 

more of its agents or employees such powers or duties as it may deem proper; NOW, 

THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING as follows: 

Section 1. Authorization of Modifications and Extensions of Maturity of Note Issues. The 

Executive Director and any Deputy Executive Director of the Authority (each, an “Authorized 

Officer” and together, the “Authorized Officers”), and each of them acting alone, are authorized on 

behalf of the Authority to negotiate with the registered owners of the respective Note Issues the 

terms of one or more extensions of maturity dates and/or modifications of the terms of any or all 

of the Note Issues. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized, 

without further action of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority, to extend the maturity 

date of any Note Issue to any date on or before December 31, 2023, and to modify the interest 

rate or interest rate formulae applicable to any Note Issue, if such Authorized Officer determines 

51605035.1 

-2- 



that such extension and/or modification is in the best interest of the Authority, all so long as no 

other material terms of the applicable Note Issue or the applicable authorizing resolution(s) are 

revised (unless otherwise authorized by the Board of Commissioners of the Authority). The 

Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized to do everything necessary 

for the execution and delivery of such documents as are useful or necessary to such extension of 

maturity and/or modification of interest rate or interest rate formulae. An Authorized Officer’s 

execution of documents in connection with the modification and/or extension of any Note Issue 

will constitute conclusive evidence of his or her approval of the extensions, modifications and/or 

other terms described therein and the approval by the Authority of such extensions, 

modifications and/or other terms. 

Section 2. Authorization of Extensions of Overlake Letter of Credit. The Authorized 

Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority (acting on its own 

behalf and/or in its capacity as general partner of Overlake TOD Housing Limited Partnership, a 

Washington limited partnership of which the Authority is the sole general partner 

(the “Partnership”)) to negotiate, execute, deliver and file (to the extent required), and to cause the 

Authority and the Partnership to perform their respective duties under, all instruments that any 

Authorized Officer, in his or her discretion, deems necessary, desirable or appropriate in order to 

obtain extensions of the term of the Overlake Letter of Credit to any date up to and including the 

final maturity of the Overlake Bonds, which may include, without limitation, amendments to the 

Reimbursement Agreement pertaining to the Overlake Bonds to extend the scheduled expiration 

date of the Overlake Letter of Credit and to incorporate such other changes as are accepted by any 

Authorized Officer. An Authorized Officer’s execution of documents in connection with the 

extension of the scheduled expiration date of the Overlake Letter of Credit will constitute 

51605035.1 

-3- 



conclusive evidence of his or her approval of terms set forth therein and the approval by the 

Authority of such terms. 

Section 3. Acting Officers Authorized. Any action authorized by this resolution to be 

taken by the Executive Director of the Authority, may in his absence be taken by a duly 

authorized Deputy Executive Director of the Authority. Any action authorized by this resolution 

to be taken by a Deputy Executive Director, may in his or her absence be taken by a duly 

authorized acting Deputy Executive Director of the Authority. 

Section 4. Execution of Duties and Obligations. The Board of Commissioners of the 

Authority authorizes and directs the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, to cause 

the Authority (whether acting on its own behalf or in its capacity as general partner of the 

Partnership, as applicable) to fulfill the Authority’s duties and obligations, and cause the 

Partnership to fulfill the Partnership’s duties and obligations under the various instruments and 

agreements authorized by this resolution. In the furtherance of the foregoing, the Authority is 

authorized to expend such funds (and to cause the Partnership to expend such funds) as are 

necessary to pay for all fees and other costs relating to the actions authorized by this resolution.  

Section 5. Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of the Authority or its officers 

prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and 

confirmed. 

Section 6. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its adoption and approval. 

51605035.1 

-4- 



ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of 

King at an open public meeting this 15th day of May, 2017. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF KING 

 

By:       
 Chair, Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

       
Executive Director 

51605035.1 

-5- 



CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, a duly chosen, qualified and acting Executive Director of the Housing 

Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”), CERTIFY: 

1. That the attached Resolution No. ______ (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct 

copy of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority, as adopted at a meeting 

of the Authority held on the 15th day of May, 2017, and duly recorded in the minute books of the 

Authority. 

2. That such meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with 

law, and, to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a 

quorum was present throughout the meeting and a majority of the members of the Board of 

Commissioners of the Authority present at the meeting voted in the proper manner for the 

adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings incident to the proper 

adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that 

I am authorized to execute this Certificate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 15th day of May, 2017. 

       
Executive Director 

 

51605035.1 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
5 



 

 

 
 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Tim Walter, Senior Director of Development & Asset Management  

            
DATE: May 9, 2017 
 
RE: Resolution No. 5564 and Resolution No. 5565: Authorization to 

amend Resolution No. 5544 and No. 5542, Authorizing Executive 
Director to Submit Application for Credit Enhanced Financing for Abbey 
Ridge Apartments and Highland Village Apartments, respectively 

 
Executive Summary 
Prior to the acquisition of the Highland Village Apartments, in August, 2016 and the 
Abbey Ridge Apartments in October, 2016, the Board authorized the Executive 
Director to negotiate and enter into purchase agreements and to execute all 
agreements in connection the financing of the properties.   
 
The Authority intends to apply for King County credit enhancement for both the 
Highland Villages and Abbey Ridge sites.  When King County lends its AAA credit 
rating to a financing, it effectively lowers the interest rate paid by the borrower and 
provides access to a broader range of potential lenders. The County credit 
enhancement program is one that the Authority has used successfully for more than 
20 years and County credit enhancement has assisted the Authority in securing 
financing for more than 2,300 units.   

 
Background 
The County credit enhancement application requires evidence the applicant has the 
authority to submit an application and enter into a formal contract and affordability 
covenant.  These amendments are intended to clarify the approvals previously granted 
to the Executive Director by Resolution No. 5542 and 5544 to specifically include the 
authorization to submit County credit enhancement applications for the Highland 
Village and Abbey Ridge Apartments and to enter into any related agreements 
necessary to secure the credit enhancement if awarded.  

 
Staff Recommendation 
Approval of the amendments is recommended. 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5564 
 

AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION NO. 5544, RELATING 
TO CREDIT ENHANCED FINANCING FOR ABBEY RIDGE APARTMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 5544 authorized the Executive Director, Stephen J. 

Norman, of the Housing Authority to acquire the Abbey Ridge Apartments (“Abbey 

Ridge”), a 146-unit apartment complex located at 3035 South 204th Street, SeaTac, 

Washington, King County; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Resolution further authorized the Executive 

Director to execute any and all applications, agreements, certifications or other 

documents in connection with the submission of various funding and financing 

applications, in order to provide all or part of the interim and /or permanent financing of 

such property, and; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING THAT: 

The Board of Commissioners hereby confirms that included within the authority 

granted to the Executive Director under Section 6 of Resolution No. 5544 is the authority 

to execute and submit to the County of King an application, together with all other related 

agreements, certifications or other materials, to provide credit enhancement for all or any 

part of the interim and/or permanent financing of such property. 



Resolution No. 5564 Amend Resolution No. 5544 for Abbey Ridge Apartments 
May 15, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting  
Page 2 of 2 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 15th DAY OF MAY, 2017. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 

 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 

 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 STEPHEN J. NORMAN, Secretary 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5565 
 

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION NO. 5542  RELATING 
TO THE CREDIT ENHANCED FINANCING FOR HIGHLAND VILLAGE 

APARTMENTS  
 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 5542 authorized the Executive Director, Stephen J. 

Norman, of the King County Housing Authority (“Housing Authority”) to acquire the 

Highland Village Apartments (“Highland Village”), a 76-unit apartment complex located 

at 14526 NE 7th Place, Bellevue, Washington, King County; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Resolution further authorized the Executive 

Director to execute any and all applications, agreements, certifications or other 

documents in connection with the submission of various funding and financing 

applications, in order to provide all or part of the interim and /or permanent financing of 

such property, and; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

KING THAT: 

The Board of Commissioners hereby confirms that included within the authority 

granted to the Executive Director under Section 6 of Resolution No. 5542 is the authority 

to execute and submit to the County of King an application, together with all other related 

agreements, certifications or other materials, to provide credit enhancement for all or any 

part of the interim and/or permanent financing of such property. 



Resolution No. 5565 Amending Resolution 5542 Highland Village Apartments 
May 15, 2017 KCHA Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING THIS 15th DAY OF MAY, 2017. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 STEPHEN J. NORMAN, Secretary 

  



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
6 



King County Housing Authority Executive Dashboard
1st Quarter Dashboard: January 1 - March 31, 2017

actuals jan '14 - mar '17 Mar-17 target 3-yr avg 3-yr high 3-yr low

Finance

LGIP Rate
1

0.65% 0.50% 0.26% 0.65% 0.09%

Non-LGIP Investment Rate 
1.05% 0.65% 0.99% 1.12% 0.75%

Revenue to Budget

   (Budgeted $68,728,843)
98% 100% 102% 109% 96%

Expenditures to Budget

   (Budgeted $56,704,471)
98% 100% 98% 100% 97%

Property Management

Public Housing Occupancy Rate

   (3,666 units)
2

98.9% 98.0% 98.9% 99.3% 98.2%

Local Program Occupancy Rate

   (5,776 units)
98.9% 96.5% 98.6% 99.4% 97.8%

KCHA Units Owned
3 9,510                     11,105                9,138                   9,510                   8,802                   

Section 8 Operations

Utilization Rate
4

   (Vouchers Leased: 9,708)
104% 103% 102% 105% 99.6%

Households Paying >40% 

   Income to Rent  (n = 2,440)
21% <25% 21% 24% 19%

Exit Data

Positive Exits 12% >25% 29% 64% 12%

Negative Exits 25% <20% 24% 48% 12%

Total Monthly Exits 65 -- 65 120 26

 

2
 Excludes some units in portfolio where turnover is not tracked monthly.

 Denotes indicators of interest.

4
 Adjusted for 12-month incremental lease-up of new vouchers.

1
 Washington State no longer publishes target LGIP rates as of 4/1/2016. KCHA budget rate of 0.5% is used in its place.

3
 11,105 represents the agency's acquisition stretch goal to achieve by the end of 2020.



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
7 



 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance 
 
Date: May 9, 2017 
 
Re:       New Bank Accounts 
 
Since the last Board meeting KCHA opened one new bank account.   
 
Corinthian Apartments 
 
• Corinthian TOD LLLP – Replacement Reserves 

 
Bank: Bank of America   
 
Purpose:   
 
The Authority has opened a full business checking account with Bank of America 
that will be used to hold replacement reserves for the Corinthian tax credit 
partnership.  Transactions will include and be limited to deposits from and 
transfers to the operating account. KCHA practice is to hold non-KCHA 
replacement reserve deposits in a separate bank account.   
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
8 



 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Sean Heron, Director of Leased Housing 
 
Date: May 9, 2017 
 
Re:       Housing Choice Voucher Waitlist Opening Update 
 
At the Board of Commissioners meeting on May 15, 2017, staff will provide a brief 
report on the results of the 2017 Housing Choice Voucher waitlist opening last 
month.   
 
Just under 19,500 households applied during the two week application period that 
ended on April 18 from which 3,500 will be selected by lottery for the waitlist.  While 
the total number of applicants was down slightly from the last waitlist opening in 
2015, applicants to the 2017 waitlist reported lower household incomes and higher 
instances of homelessness.  
 
Staff will provide an overview of the waitlist demographics and some preliminary 
observations about related implications for the administration of the HCV program.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
9 



 
 
 
To: Board of Commissioners           
  
From: Matt Peterson, Maintenance Manager 
 
Date: May 9, 2017 
 
Re:       Energy Performance Contract  
 
At the May Board meeting, staff will provide a status update on the Energy 
Performance Contract. This $22 million project has been estimated to provide KCHA 
with almost $50 million in HUD paid subsidy incentives over the next twenty years 
through the installation of a variety of Energy Conservation Measures (ECMs) in 
public housing developments. 
 
The update will include: 

• Installation status of various ECMs and expected completion dates 
• Preliminary energy savings at KCHA properties where measures have been 

installed 
• Contract status including new properties added 
• Revised estimate of savings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
10 



 

 

 
 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM: Connie Davis, Deputy Executive Director 

            
DATE: May 9, 2017 
 
RE: Federal Fiscal Year 2017 Budget and Impact on KCHA  
 
At the upcoming Board meeting, staff will be presenting the anticipated impacts of 
the recently signed 2017 federal budget on KCHA’s HUD supported programs.  
 
Attached as background is a publication issued by the Council of Large Public 
Housing Authorities (CLPHA) of which KCHA is a member.  Asterisked programs 
are those affecting the Authority. The final column on the right is the budget as 
signed by the President.   

 
 





T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
11 










































	201705 KCHA Board Agenda
	Tab Number 1
	201704 KCHA Board Minutes
	Monday, April 17, 2017
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
	COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON


	Tab Number 2
	201705 Voucher Report (LR)
	201705 Voucher Report (WX)
	Tab Number 3
	201705 Resolution No. 5539 Revised Connor Homes Sale (Memo)
	201705 Resolution No. 5539 - Greenbridge Bulk Parcel Conner Homes (Revised Resolution)
	THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
	STEPHEN J. NORMAN


	Tab Number 4
	201705 Resolution No. 5563 Resolution to extend maturity to 2023 (memo)
	201705 Resolution No. 5563 LOC Overlake (Resolution)
	Section 1 . Authorization of Modifications and Extensions of Maturity of Note Issues. The Executive Director and any Deputy Executive Director of the Authority (each, an “Authorized Officer” and together, the “Authorized Officers”), and each of them a...
	Section 2 . Authorization of Extensions of Overlake Letter of Credit. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority (acting on its own behalf and/or in its capacity as general partner of Overlake TOD...
	Section 3 . Acting Officers Authorized. Any action authorized by this resolution to be taken by the Executive Director of the Authority, may in his absence be taken by a duly authorized Deputy Executive Director of the Authority. Any action authorized...
	Section 4 . Execution of Duties and Obligations. The Board of Commissioners of the Authority authorizes and directs the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, to cause the Authority (whether acting on its own behalf or in its capacity as ...
	Section 5 . Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of the Authority or its officers prior to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed.
	Section 6 . Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and approval.

	Tab Number 5
	201705 Resolution No. 5542 and 5544 CE Application Amendment (Memo)
	201705 Resolution No. 5564 Amend Credit Enhance Financing Abbey Ridge  (Reso)
	201705 Resolution No. 5565 Amend Credit enhancement Highland Village (Reso)
	Tab Number 6
	201705 First Qtr Executive Dashboard Report
	Tab Number 7
	201705 New Bank Accounts
	From: Craig Violante, Director of Finance
	Date: May 9, 2017
	Re:       New Bank Accounts

	Tab Number 8
	201705 HCV Voucher Waitlist Update
	From: Sean Heron, Director of Leased Housing
	Date: May 9, 2017
	Re:       Housing Choice Voucher Waitlist Opening Update

	Tab Number 9
	201705 Energy Performance Contract
	From: Matt Peterson, Maintenance Manager
	Date: May 9, 2017
	Re:       Energy Performance Contract

	Tab Number 10
	201705 FFY 2017 Budget Update
	201705 5-1-17FY17ComparativeFundingChart for Federal Budget Discussion
	Tab Number 11
	0920_001



